
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Ben Bix 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

30 March 2022 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 7 April 2022 at 7.30 
pm via Zoom. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Governance Services Manager 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2022 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8  
 

5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 

Public Document Pack



pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION - OFFICE TO RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS (Pages 3 - 
20) 
 

 Report of the Head of Planning on an Article 4 Direction on office to residential 
conversions.  
 

8.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

9.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 10 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

PART II 
 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Kasumu (Chairman) 

S.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
G.Hayes 
A.Hellyer 
S.McNamara 
G.Michaelides 
R.Platt 
 

J.Quinton 
D.Richardson 
A Rohale 
P.Shah 
C.Stanbury 
S.Thusu 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Ben Bix, 
Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Matt Pyecroft  
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Various Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 07 APRIL 2022 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING 

ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION – OFFICE TO RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In recent years, a number of new Permitted Development (PD) rights have been 
introduced, which allow certain development to be undertaken without planning 
permission. Many of these are intended to be for development which would be 
uncontroversial but some others may present issues in certain areas. 

1.2 One PD right, which was introduced on a temporary basis in 2013 and made 
permanent in 2016 allowed offices to be converted to residential. Extensive use 
was made of this by landowners across the borough, and whilst it provided a 
significant amount of new homes, this led to a significant loss of employment 
space, with just under 32,000sqm having been lost across the borough between 
2013 and March 2021.  

1.3 Article 4 Directions enable local planning authorities to remove specific permitted 
development rights on identified sites, which means that if any such development 
is proposed, planning permission must be applied for in the normal way. A number 
of Article 4 Directions have been enacted by the Council in the last two years. 
Following consultation and member decision, the Council confirmed an Article 4 
Direction to remove the permitted development right enabling offices to be 
converted to residential uses on the four most significant employment sites in the 
borough, coming into effect on 12 October 2020. Subsequently, a second Article 
4 was approved by members in June 2021 to remove the right to demolish existing 
employment buildings and replace them with residential on the same employment 
sites which came into effect in February 2022. Another removed the right for 
owners of existing blocks of flats to extend by up to two additional floors for 
additional flats to help protect heritage assets in Hatfield, and following member 
approval this will come into effect in July 2022. 

1.4 Recent changes to both Planning Use Classes and Permitted Development 
regulations mean that the Article 4 Direction which removed the right to convert 
offices to residential in certain areas will cease to have effect on 31 July 2022. In 
order to retain this protection for the identified employment areas, a replacement 
must be put in place, and members agreed in September 2021 to do this.  

1.5 Following this member approval, a replacement Article 4 Direction which would 
remove this permitted development right was made on 26 January 2022 with a 
public consultation starting on the same day. Unlike previous ones made by the 
Council, this had an immediate start, which means that – if following the 
consultation, members wish to retain it - it needs to be confirmed within six months 
otherwise it will lapse. Following analysis of the results of the consultation, it is 
proposed that the Article 4 should be confirmed, so that it will be made permanent.  

1.6 Appendix 1 to this report contains a plan of the employment sites in question 
covered by the Article 4 Direction. Appendix 2 reports on the results of the 
consultation. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



- 2 - 

 
2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1. That Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel notes the results of the public 
consultation which took place for six weeks from January to March 2022. 

2.2. That, after taking the results of the public consultation into consideration, Cabinet 
Planning and Parking Panel recommends to Cabinet the confirmation of the 
Article 4 Direction covering the key employment sites across the borough in order 
for it to continue to have effect.  

2.3. If unanimously agreed by the Panel, for the decision to be taken by the relevant 
Executive Member using their delegated powers under paragraph 18.1(b) of the 
Cabinet Procedure Rules.’ 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Government introduced Permitted Development (PD) Rights to enable offices 
(at that time Use Class B1a) to be converted to residential (C3) uses without the 
need for planning permission in 2013. Initially this was for a period of three years 
but was subsequently made permanent. Since then, these PD rights have been 
extended to enable both light industrial (B1c) and distribution (B8) uses to be 
converted to residential and other PD rights have been brought forward allowing 
non-residential floorspace to be converted or otherwise used for residential. 

3.2 Substantial use has been made by landowners and developers in the borough of 
the PD rights to convert offices to residential, with 478 units developed (to 31 
March 2021), and commitments for a further 241. Whilst this has brought forward 
much needed housing, the rights have been criticised by some as there has been 
no need to demonstrate that the office space being lost was not in demand or 
otherwise important for the local economy. As a result, some 31,957sqm of office 
space in the borough has been lost in this way since 2013 and commitments for a 
further 10,116sqm. In addition, there have been other criticisms as residential 
accommodation delivered in this way does not need to provide any affordable 
housing or Section 106 contributions towards education, healthcare, open space 
etc. which might be expected through the normal planning process. 

3.3 This concern is shared on a county-wide basis by the Hertfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) who in February 2019 published a study looking at 
the issue across the county as a whole, the impact and what might be done to 
address any problems it causes. This study showed that Hertfordshire as a whole 
had experienced significant losses of employment space over the last ten years. 
The County had, on average, seen a 21% net loss in office floorspace, of which 
more than half had been lost to residential, primarily through Permitted 
Development. Industrial floorspace had also reduced over that period, though by 
a much smaller proportion, with a net loss of 7%.  

3.4 Particular PD rights can be removed from an area or areas by use of an Article 4 
Direction. This does not mean that particular development or changes cannot take 
place, but that they must go through a normal planning application process so that 
the local planning authority can assess proposals and decide whether or not 
permission should be granted. Members will be aware that this process has been 
used a number of times by the Council in recent years. 

3.5 An Article 4 was put in place to remove the right to convert offices to residential on 
key sites throughout the borough and this took effect on 12 October 2020. Due to 
changes to both the Use Classes Order and national Permitted Development 

Page 4



- 3 - 

rights, this will cease to have effect in July 2022, and in September 2021 members 
agreed for a replacement to be put in place. 

3.6 Consultation on this replacement Article 4 ran from 26 January until 09 March 
2022. A notification letter was sent to all occupiers of business premises on the 
sites in question which included a request for it to be passed onto the landowner if 
the business was a tenant. In line with the Council’s Statement of Community 
Involvement a number of statutory consultees and local stakeholders including 
planning agents were also sent consultation letters. In addition, site notices were 
posted around the sites in question, and public notices were printed in the Welwyn 
Hatfield Times and in the Hertfordshire Mercury.  

3.7 The consultation attracted ten responses. A report on the consultation is attached 
at Appendix 2, but in summary: 

 Of the eight expressing an opinion, six were supportive, two opposed. The 
other two responses were acknowledgements from statutory consultees 
with no opinion expressed, 

 All six of those who were supportive provided additional comments. These 
included the importance of retaining employment spaces to have 
sustainable places to live and work, that the Council should maintain the 
integrity of adopted employment areas, the impact on local businesses or 
those wishing to come into the area potentially unable to find suitable space, 
and support for retaining employment provision in one specific location 
given its value to the local economy. 

 The two who were opposed also provided additional comments. One 
referred to people will have made already plans based on the permitted 
development rights. Another highlighted that businesses will regularly 
review their office requirements and that they may reasonably conclude that 
any surplus space could easily be repurposed for other uses including 
residential. 

3.8 A full consultation report including a summary of the responses, the points raised 
and the Council response to these points is attached at Appendix 2. As the original 
Article 4 Direction was subject to a 12 month notice period and public consultation 
before it took effect, it is considered that sufficient notice has been provided. The 
second issue that was raised opposing the proposal was on behalf of a large local 
employer and said that they regularly review their office requirements, particularly 
in the light of Covid, and any business such as theirs may decide to reduce their 
physical office space. In this situation, they may conclude that any surplus space 
could be repurposed for other uses, including residential and such development 
can be an important source of new housing. As a result any such proposal to 
remove PD rights should only be taken with a clear and up to date justification. 

3.9 It is important to note that an Article 4 Direction such as this would not preclude 
offices being converted to residential, but it would mean that it would need to go 
through the planning application route, so that proposals and their impacts can 
properly be considered. In this instance, there is a policy mechanism in both the 
adopted District Plan and the emerging Local Plan for applicants to make the case 
that any floorspace is no longer required for employment uses, but it would need 
to be demonstrated by having undertaken a marketing campaign. In addition, if 
they were considering other uses apart from residential for any surplus floorspace, 
planning permission would be likely to be needed for these, so the Council’s 
approach is consistent. 

Page 5



- 4 - 

3.10 The extensive losses of employment floorspace seen in the borough in recent 
years shows that it is important for the Council to retain a degree of control over 
any proposed future losses on the most important employment sites in the 
borough. As a result, it is not considered that the consultation has highlighted any 
issues which would warrant the Council reconsidering its decision to designate an 
Article 4 Direction. 

3.11 In July 2021, an updated version of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) was issued by Government. In this document, a new paragraph 53 set out 
clear guidance for local authorities on the use of Article 4 Directions: 

The use of Article 4 directions to remove national permitted development rights 
should:  

 where they relate to change from non-residential use to residential use, be 
limited to situations where an Article 4 direction is necessary to avoid wholly 
unacceptable adverse impacts (this could include the loss of the essential 
core of a primary shopping area which would seriously undermine its vitality 
and viability, but would be very unlikely to extend to the whole of a town 
centre)  

 in other cases, be limited to situations where an Article 4 direction is 
necessary to protect local amenity or the well-being of the area (this could 
include the use of Article 4 directions to require planning permission for the 
demolition of local facilities)  

 in all cases, be based on robust evidence, and apply to the smallest 
geographical area possible. 

3.12 As can be seen, Government has set out clear tests for the use of Article 4 
Directions, in particular those that relate to residential uses, such as this proposal. 
Officers believe that the significant loss of employment floorspace in the borough 
in recent years and the potential for this to continue, along with the evidence base 
which is referred to earlier, mean that what is proposed is appropriate and 
evidence based so that these tests have been met. In addition, the Secretary of 
State was consulted and no response has been received. However, members 
should also satisfy themselves in respect of the tests.  

3.13 If Members accept the officer recommendation, no changes would be made to the 
Article 4 and the Direction would be confirmed in order to continue to have effect 
past the initial six month period which otherwise would end on 25 July 2022.  
 
Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Council has a legal duty to seek, through the planning system, to deliver 
sustainable development. Safeguarding the most important employment sites in 
the borough is a means of seeking this. 

4.2 Under the provisions of the General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as 
amended) the Council can remove permitted developments rights granted by that 
Order. Where permitted development rights have been removed applicants have 
the right to claim for compensation where a planning application is refused or 
granted subject to conditions. Compensation may also be sought for abortive 
expenditure or other loss or damage which can be directly attributed to the 
extinguishment of permitted development rights. However no compensation is 
payable if the procedures of the Town & Country Planning Act (Compensation) 
Regulations 2013 are adopted; namely that notice of an Article 4 Direction is given 

Page 6



- 5 - 

not less than twelve months before coming into force. Whilst previous Article 4’s 
have deferred the start in order to avoid this, it is not necessary in this case as it is 
replacing an existing Direction to ensure continued safeguarding of the 
employment sites. As the existing Direction will lapse in July 2022, the new 
Direction will ensure continuity but will not remove any further PD rights.   

4.3 The making of the order was a legal process which involved the Article 4 Direction 
to be officially signed and sealed. Confirmation is a similar process and will again 
need the document to be officially signed and sealed. 
 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 If an Article 4 Direction is in place, any planning application for development which 
would be Permitted Development does not previously attract an application fee. 
However, this exemption has now been removed and an application fee is payable. 

5.2 There are theoretical future financial implications associated with restricting 
permitted development rights, positively in the form of protecting business rates 
income and adversely in the form of reducing opportunities for council tax income 
growth and new homes bonus. There would also be incremental service costs 
which would be associated with increases in residential property. The net of this 
position is not possible to quantify as there could be many different influencing 
factors and scenarios, including potential impacts on local employment and 
welfare. The restrictions do not cause a change to the current financial position of 
the council, and as the restrictions protect employment space and the local 
economy is supported, so should be viewed positively in protecting the local 
economy.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 Financial Risk. It is possible for landowners to claim compensation against a 
planning authority if the value of their asset has been affected by the introduction 
of an Article 4 Direction. However, as this Direction replaces one already in place 
which will otherwise lapse in July 2022, the time period for any claims of 
compensation has already passed, so it is considered that all landowners are 
already aware of the Council’s intentions. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no known security and terrorism implications in relation to the proposals 
set out in this report. 
 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no know procurement implications in relation to the proposals set out in 
this report. 
 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1. Seeking to safeguard the borough’s most employment sites will help deliver 
sustainable development and provide opportunities for residents to work close to 
home rather than having to travel outside the borough for work. This reduction in 
the need to travel will help reduce carbon emissions. 
 

  

Page 7



- 6 - 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The Article 4 Direction will result in planning applications which need to be 
determined by development management staff. 
 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1. Permitted Development takes place without the need for securing planning 
permission in the usual way. The Local Plan recognises the importance of good 
design and placemaking, so the planning application process allows these factors 
to be taken into account and any resulting development may be more beneficial to 
wellbeing.  
 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1. A public and business consultation on these proposals was undertaken in January 
– March 2022 and the results of the consultation have informed this report. A 
summary of responses is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority is linked to the 
Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and particularly Priority 4 to support sustainable 
economic growth. 
 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1. An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

. 
 
Name of author Matt Pyecroft  
Title Senior Projects Officer (Planning) 
Date March 2022  
 
 
Background papers:   
 
Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership – Loss of Employment Land in Hertfordshire 
(February 2019): https://www.hertfordshirelep.com/media/rmphd5mk/loss-of-
employment-space-in-hertfordshire-february-2019.pdf  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 Maps of the employment areas showing “red lines” where the Article 4 would 
apply. 
 
Appendix 2 Consultation report  
 

Page 8



P
age 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12



Article 4 Direction – Consultation Report  

 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 In 2019, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council put in place an Article 4 Direction 

which removed the Permitted Development (PD) right to convert offices to 

residential on five key employment sites across the borough. This Article 4 had 

a deferred start so came into effect on 12 October 2020. 

 

1.2 Removing this Permitted Development right was considered important as the 

borough had seen the loss of a significant quantity of employment space in the 

period from 2013. This position was replicated across the county and the 

Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) produced a report in 2019 

which highlighted the degree of employment space loss in Hertfordshire as a 

whole and the impact on business and the local economy.  

 

1.3 A second Article 4 Direction for these employment areas, which removed the 

right to demolish premises and build purpose built residential on the site was 

put in place and, again having a deferred start, came into effect on 01 February 

2022.  

 

1.4 Due to changes in both Permitted Development rights and the Use Classes 

Order, the original Article 4 Direction which removed the right to convert offices 

to residential will cease to have effect in July 2022, and so if the Council wishes 

this PD right to remain removed, a replacement Article 4 Direction needs to be 

put in place.  

 

1.5 Members agreed at Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel (CPPP) in September 

2021 that a replacement Article 4 should be put in place. 
 

2.0 Process Followed 
 

2.1 This Article 4 Direction was made on 26 January 2022, and public consultation 

started that day. Consultation letters were sent to occupiers of existing buildings 

in the identified areas with a request to send it onto their landlord if they were a 

tenant of the property.  

 

2.2 In addition, consultation notifications were sent out to statutory consultees, as 

identified in the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. This included 

parish councils, relevant national government bodies such as Historic England, 

neighbouring authorities and Hertfordshire County Council.  

 

2.3 In addition to the consultation letters, the consultation was advertised by the 

placing of a public notices in the Welwyn Hatfield Times and Hertfordshire 

Mercury. Finally, site notices – in line with the process used for publicising 

planning applications – were posted throughout the sites in question.  

Page 13



 

2.4 The consultation ran for six weeks, in line with the Council’s Statement of 

Community Involvement, from 26 January to 09 March 2021. During that time, 

respondents could complete an online questionnaire, email comments to a 

specified address or respond by post. For consistency and to enable collation 

and analysis, all such responses were then entered online. 
 

3.0  Responses 
 

3.1 During the consultation period, a total of nine responses were received; three 

from residents and six from organisations, though of those five two were merely 

acknowledgements from statutory consultees who had no wish to comment. The 

low response may be a reflection of the fact that this was the third Article 4 

Direction to be consulted on in the same locations in just over two years.  

 

3.2 The online questionnaire asked respondents whether or not they agreed with the 

proposed Article 4 and why, whether there were any changes they would like to 

see, and whether they had any other comments. Those responses which came 

by email or by letter have had relevant comments transferred into this 

questionnaire to allow for easier analysis. 

 

3.3 A summary of the views expressed and comments made, along with the 

Council’s response to them, is set out in a table at the end of this document, but 

a short summary is presented below.  

 

 

 Yes No No 
Response 

Question 1: Do you support the proposed Article 4 
Direction?  

6 * 2 2 

Question 2: If you support the proposed Article 4 
Direction, please say why and which element(s) you 
agree with 

4   

Question 3: If you don’t support the proposed Article 4 
Direction, please say why and which element(s) you 
disagree with 

1   

Question 4: Please set out the reasons you disagree 2   

Question 5: What changes would you would like to see 
to the proposed Article 4 Direction? 

   

Question 6: Do you have any other comments?    

 

 
 

*though one e-mailed response appeared to say that they objected to the proposed Article 4, 

subsequent comments highlighted the value of local employment and showed a wish to 

retain it. This response was clarified in a telephone call and it appears that what was being 

proposed had been misunderstood and accordingly it has been shown as support for the 

proposal. 

Page 14



 

 

3.4 The full set of responses can be found online. A summary of the 

responses received and the Council’s response to the points made is 

below. Please note that a response can make more than one point to be 

responded to. 

 
  

Response / Comment  Respondent 
Type 

Support? WHBC Response 

    

I supported the previous 
Article 4 Direction and 
my view remains the 
same 

Resident Y Support noted 

B&Q has occupied its 
store at Swallowfields, 
AL7 1JD since 1986 and 
has no intention of 
vacating the site. The 
B&Q store serves the 
whole of Welwyn Garden 
City and makes a 
valuable contribution to 
the local economy both 
in terms of employment 
and local DIY 
expenditure. Currently, 
B&Q employs 52 staff at 
the site. A number of 
recent planning 
applications, including 
planning application 
reference 
6/2021/1277/OUTLINE 
at the B&Q store site, 
have sought to replace 
existing employment 
generating uses with 
residential uses. B&Q 
contend the Council 
must seek to maintain 
the integrity of the 
adopted employment 
areas now and for the 
future. In this regard, 
B&Q is therefore 
supportive of the 
principle of the proposed 

Consultant 
on behalf of 
a business 

Y Support noted. The 
application referred to – 
which would not be affected 
by the proposal – is 
currently being considered. 

Page 15



Article 4 direction. 

It should be honoured 
that it has been 
permitted and people 
who are directly affected 
have already made 
plans. 

Resident N Comment noted 

I fully support the 
continuation of the 
Article 4 Direction in the 
employment areas 
particularly in Welwyn 
Garden City which is 
under pressure from the 
tsunami of developers 
applications. We need to 
keep our employment 
spaces if we are to have 
a sustainable place to 
live and to work! 

Resident Y Support noted. A balance of 
employment and housing is 
important. 

Sopers Road is a small 
but versatile estate that 
has a broad range of 
services (builders 
merchant, car garage, 
removals, gym), offices 
(Soper House, Ellis 
Training) and light 
manufacturing. Because 
of its versatility and 
location it serves 
residents and offers 
employment 
opportunities outside of 
conventional retailing. 
Once lost, these 
business or those like 
them, could never return, 
therefore the Parish 
Council are submitting 
an major objection to the 
withdrawal of the article 
4 direction. 

Parish 
Council 

Y Comment as written is 
unclear as it appears to 
think that it is proposed to 
withdraw the existing Article 
4 Direction. However, a 
telephone follow up has 
confirmed that the response 
and comment is supportive 
of the proposal. Support 
noted.  

Our business regularly 
reviews its operational 
and accommodation 
requirements. In recent 
months this has included 
a consideration of the 
possible longer term 

Consultant 
on behalf of 
a large 
business  

N What is proposed would not 
preclude offices being 
converted to residential 
uses, only that this would 
not be able to be done 
under Permitted 
Development (PD). This 

Page 16



effects of the Covid 
pandemic on working 
patterns. It follows that 
businesses such as ours 
which have significant 
office accommodation 
may decide to reduce 
their physical office 
space. In such 
circumstances, 
businesses and property 
owners may reasonably 
conclude that this 
accommodation can be 
appropriately repurposed 
for other uses, including 
to meet the urgent and 
ongoing need for new 
housing. 

means that a planning 
application would need to 
be made so that the merits 
of the proposal and the 
impacts can be properly 
considered and assessed. 
There is a mechanism in 
both the District Plan and 
adopted Local Plan for 
applicants to demonstrate 
that the business premises 
are no longer required for 
that use, but this requires a 
proper marketing exercise 
to be undertaken.  

This now long-
established permitted 
development opportunity 
is particularly important 
in an area such as 
Welwyn Hatfield where 
planning constraints 
have limited the delivery 
of new homes over a 
sustained period. The 
permitted development 
rights which would 
normally allow the 
conversion of office 
accommodation to 
residential use, subject 
to a prior approval 
process and certain 
limitations and 
reasonable conditions 
which will secure 
appropriate standards of 
accommodation, are an 
important tool for both 
local business and the 
delivery of new homes in 
these circumstances. 
Any decision to restrict 
these rights should only 
be taken with a strong, 
clear and up to date 

Consultant 
on behalf of 
a large 
business  

N The Council believes that 
there is strong justification 
for this proposed course of 
action. The proposed 
Article 4 does not cover the 
whole of the borough, but 
those areas which are seen 
as the most significant for 
employment. The Council 
has an up to date evidence 
base which shows the 
significant loss of 
employment floorspace 
since 2013 and the 
Hertfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership have 
published a report in 2019 
which shows the impact of 
this on business and the 
economy across the 
county. 

Page 17



justification. 

For the last few years we 
have been receiving 
feedback from a number 
of bodies, including local 
planning authorities and 
business representative 
organisations, expressing 
their considerable 
concern at the loss of 
employment space to 
other non-commercial 
uses, largely residential. 

Local 
Enterprise 
Partnership 

Y The impact of the loss of 
significant employment 
space is well documented 
in the Hertfordshire LEP’s 
report of 2019. Comment 
noted. 

Significant loss of 
employment land across 
the county, and in areas 
such as Welwyn 
Hatfield, are a major 
cause of concern for the 
LEP.  In our view the 
loss is putting pressure 
on existing businesses 
who are unable to 
expand due to inability to 
find suitable space, and 
it is diminishing our 
ability to offer suitable 
space to prospective 
inward investors.  There 
may also be instances 
where commercial 
tenants have to vacate 
premises in order to free 
it for conversion to 
residential uses.  Your 
proposed re-issue of the 
Article 4 Direction will 
help address this issue 
by helping to stem the 
loss of employment 
uses. 
 

Local 
Enterprise 
Partnership  

Y Welwyn Hatfield has seen 
the loss of significant 
employment floorspace 
since 2013 and is 
concerned about the 
potential impacts of this. 
Support noted.  

HCC expressed its 
support prior to the 
original issue of this 
Article 4 Direction and 
continues to be 
supportive. As such 
HCC has no comments 
and is content with the 

Hertfordshire 
County 
Council 

Y Support noted. 

Page 18



re-issuing of this 
Direction. 
 
 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION - OFFICE TO RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS
	Appendix 1 (combined pdf)
	Appendix 1 CPPP - Beaconsfield Rd Great N Rd Site Plan
	Appendix 1 CPPP - HBP and Bishop Square Site Plan
	Appendix 1 CPPP - WGC Employment Area Plan
	Appendix 1 Sopers Road Site Plan

	Appendix 2 - CPPP A4D Consultation Report


